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Chestertown Historic District, Chestertown, Maryland

Chestertown's beginning dates from 1698 when the court house for
Kent County was erected on the bank of the Chester River at the
future site of the town. In 1706 streets were laid out for a
town and in 1708 the small settlement, then known as New Town,
was made a Port of Entry for Cecil, Kent, and Queen Anne counties
of Maryland. New Town, however, failed to grow and the leading
tobacce port on the Eastern Shore during the first half of the
18th century was Oxford, located in Talbot County on the Tred
Avon River. Founded in 1683, Oxford was for some time a close
rival of Amnapolis as the busiest port in the province.

Chestertcwn's growth as a major port began in 1730, when its
cwney, Simon Wilmer, resurveyed his land and laid out the existe
ing gricdiron plan of streets and house lots. From about 1750
1790 the town flourished as the chief tobacco and wheat shipping
port of Marvland's Eastern Shore. During this period merchants
and planters constructed fine Georgian brick town houses in the
town. Some 50 of these structures still stand.
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Other. Sites Cansifored

Chestertown Historic District, Maryland

Locaﬁ%gg: Kent Cowady, Chestertown.

Owership: Various, private and public. Mr. Meynard P. Vhite,
Chairman, Historie District Commission, 107 South
Mill Street, Chestertown, Maryland 21620,

Boundarics of Historic District (See attached map): The ares is
roughly bounded by the Chester River on the southeast,
by Cannon Street on the southwest, by Cross Street
on the northwest, and by lMaple Avenue on the northeast.

1

History and Condition

From aboult 1750 to 1790 Chestertown flourished as
the chief tobacco and wheat shipping port of Maryland's Eastern
Shore. During this period merchants end planters constructed
fine Georgian brick town houses Iin the town, With the exceptlon
of Annapolis, Chestertoim bas more extant pre-~Revolutionary
‘buildings than any other Maryland communiby. Most of Chestertown's
some 50 historic houses, however, have undergone considersble
alteration.

Chestertown's begimning dates from 1698 when the court
house for Kent County was erected on the bank of the Thaster River
at the future site of the town. In 1706 streets were laid out
for & town and in 1708 the small settlement, then known as New
Town, was wade & Port of Entry for Cecil, Kent, and Queen Anne
counties of Maryland. New Town, however, failled to grow and the
leading tobacco port on the Hzgterm Shore during the first half
of the 18th century was Oxford, located in Talbot County on the

-Tred Avon River. TFounded in 1683, Oxford was for scne time &
close rival of Annapolis as the busiest port in the province.

o Chestertown's growth as a major port began in 1730,

vhen its ovmer, Simon Wilmer, resurveyed his land and laid out the
existing gridiron plan of streets and house lots.. As the heavy
vater-borne trade with Philadelphia grew, wealthy merchants and
planters began building town houses in New Town. By 1775 the town
had emerged as the chief tobacco and wheat shipping port of the
-Bastern Shore., In 1780, when the town charter was revised, the name
_of New Town was changed to Chestertown. In 1782 Washington College,

- the first institution of higher education in Maryland, was founded

. at Chestertown by the Reverend William Smith. The first college



gbructure, a large thres-story brick structure podeled alter
Princeton's Nassou Hall, was completed in 1784.Y The toun's

first newspaper began publication in 1793. By 1800, however,
Chestertown was in decline as a port and was rapidly losing its
trade to BRaltinmore. -

On Zeptember 23, 1910,a serlous fire swept the business
district of Chestertown and destroyed 20 stores and six houses.
The 18th century residential area, lying between the business
section and the Chesbter River, however, escapad without damage.
The town still has soproximately 50 houses that were erected in
the period 1730-1800, but most underwent consilderable modifleation
in the 19th century. The finest of these Georgian and Federal '
Period houses arve concentrated along Water Street, near.the Chester
River., There are few intrusions on this street, but the problem
becomes more serious as one proceeds Northwest from the river to .
the business district. Among the structures of architectural
interest ere the following buildings:

1. Ringgold-Pearce House {also known as the Abbey), 100
South Vater Street. In 1767 the merchant Thomas Ringgold bouvght
two housces that had been built by Nathonilel Palmer ang Nathaniel
Hynson, Jr. around 1735 and united these dwellings with a new
section into a Georglan three-part composition two-and-one-half
story brick house. The elaborate interiors of the house were
decorated by Willlam Buckland, noted archltect of Annapolis, in
1767-1771. The original Chippendale-fecrgian raneling of the
drawving room was purchased and removed frcm the house by the
Baltimore Museum of Art in the 1920s. The house was restored in
the 1930s and now serves as the residence of the president of
VWashington College.

2. "“Custom House," 101 South Water Street. A long three-story
brick bullding with a dormered and gebled roof, obviously erected
in two stages, this building is said to have heen built by the
Ringgolds in 1694, The first f£loor, which contained three large
storage rooms, served as a warehouse, and the uvpper floors were
vtilized as the living quarters. Maryland colonial port authorities
rented a room in this house for use as  Chestertown's custom house.

3. Widehall; 101 North Water Street, at High Street. Frected
by Thomas Smythe, merchant, about 1770, this is a large two-and-
one-half story brick Georgian house with a hipped and dormered
roof and elaborate interiors. The exterior, however, has been
altered: a mansard roof was added in the 19th century and the
- existing hip roof is a reconstruction; the present large two-story
. porch with tall Yonic columns was added across the rear (river)
elevation in 1910,

BZ?ashington College's original building was destroyed by fire
in 1027, "



i, River House, 107 North Water Street. Built in 1737-43
by Williom Timbrill, a PBarbados merchant, with elaborate interiors
dating from around ](02, this is a large three-story brick Queen
Apne style house. The exterior, however, hasg been altered by the - .
-adaition (c.1825) of a Greek Rcvw*sl poreh on the street elevation |
and the consbruction of & new wing, which also involved the
demolition of the original galleried porch; on the rear (xiver)
elevation in 1912, The fine Chippendale-Ceorgian poneling of
the third floor master bedroom was purchased and removed from the
house by the Henry Francls Dupont Winterthur Museum in 1926,

5. Meteer House, 110 North VWater Street. A brick dwelling
built in 1780,

6. Perkins House, 115 MNorth Water Street. A brick house
dating from around 1726,

T. Bacchus House, 201 Nort h Vater Street. A brick house
erected around 1780, : ‘

8. Nicholson-Daringer House , North Queen Strest. A fine
brick Federal Period town house built in 1788 by Captain John
Richolson of the U.S. Navy.

9. Eamanuel. Protestant Episcopal Church, High and CTODS
Streats. - A brick church, greatly altered, buil’t; in Y768, The
structure is treated individvally and in detall elses rhaze in this
report,

10, Palmer House, 532 Eeu‘o High S“creet. A one-and-a-half
story stone house. .

11, Vhite Swan Tavern, 231-235 East High Street. A two-and-
. one-half story brick.building erected around 1750 and once used
&8s a “tavern,

12, Williem Baxrroll House,. 108-110 East High Street. A
three-story brick house said to have been erected around 1735 by
William Barroll V.,

13. Wiches House, 100 Fast High Street. A three-story brick
tavern built by Samuel Beck prior to 1775. o :

~



At-MRAhment for A.

CHESTERTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT, MARYLAND

Boundaries of the Historic District:

The historic district is bounded on the southeast by the

Chester River, on the southwest by Cannon Street, on the

L

northqut by Spring St¥eet, and on the northeast by Maple'
Avenue, Precise boundaries are recorded in ink on copies

of the following two maps: U, S, Geological Survey Map:
Chestertown Quadrangle, Maryland, 7.5 Minute Seriés
(Topographic), 1953, and a more detailed Street Map entitled
"Boundaries of Chestertown Historic District, Maryland,"
Copies of both maps axe on filé with the Branch of Historical
Suxveys, Division of History, Office of Archeology and

Historic Preservation, National Park Service,
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